ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 29, 2008
3:02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 14
Proposing an anendnment to the Uniform Rules of the Al aska State
Legislature relating to standing conmttees.

- MOVED HCR 14 OQJT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 29

Uging the President of the United States and the United States
Congress to fulfill the federal obligation to provide adequate
funding for special education in public schools.

- MOVED HIR 29 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 324

"An Act relating to the Alaska housing trust fund and to the
Al aska Council on the Honeless; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HCR 14
SHORT TI TLE: AMEND UNI FORM RULES: STANDI NG COW TTEES

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER BY REQUEST OF JT LEG
EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG TASK FORCE

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- January 29, 2008



01/ 15/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H) HES
01/ 29/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HIR 29

SHORT TITLE: FEDERAL FUNDI NG FOR SPECI AL EDUCATI ON

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATIVE(s) HAWKER BY REQUEST OF JT LEG
EDUCATI ON' FUNDI NG TASK FORCE

01/ 15/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H) HES

01/ 29/ 08 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 324

SHORT TI TLE: LOW | NCOVE HOUSI NG HOMELESSNESS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 17/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 08 (H) HES, FIN
01/ 29/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JULI LUCKY, Staff

to Representative M ke Hawker

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HCR 14 on behalf of the sponsor,
Representative Hawker, chair of the Joint Legislative Education
Fundi ng Task Force (JLEFTF).

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 14 and answered
guestions during the hearing on HIR 29.

JESSE CROSS- CALL, Staff

to Senator Johnny Ellis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HIR 29 on behalf of Senator
Ellis, menber of the Joint Legislative Education Funding Task
Force (JLEFTF).

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -2- January 29, 2008



MARK ROM CK, Director

Pl anni ng & Program Devel opnent

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC)

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 234.

DAN FAUSKE, Chief Executive Oficer/Executive Director
Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 234.

JEFF JESSEE, Chief Executive Oficer

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 324.

STEPHANI E WHEELER, Executive Director

Ofice of Faith Based & Comunity Initiatives
Department of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 324.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:02:14 PM
Representatives WIson, Seaton, C ssna, and Gardner were present
at the call to order. Represent ati ves Fairclough, Keller, and
Roses arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HCR 14- AMEND UNI FORM RULES: STANDI NG COWM TTEES

3:03:41 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 14, Proposing an anendnment to
the Uniform Rules of the Alaska State Legislature relating to
standi ng commi ttees.

3:04: 49 PM
JULI LUCKY, Staff to Representative M ke Hawker, Al aska State

Legi slature, explained that HCR 14 w Il establish a separate
House Education Standing Commttee in statute in order to hear

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- January 29, 2008



education issues that the Joint Legislative Education Funding

Task Force was unable to address. Furthernore, the health and
social services issues are many and take the tinme of the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Comittee. She

poi nted out that the House and the Senate usually have special
education commttees to hear education bills and the new

standing conmittee wll continue that responsibility for the
House.
3:06: 53 PM

CHAI R WLSON expressed a bit of concern with regard to the cross
over of education and social services when addressing issues of
early devel opnent. For bills regarding early devel opment or
soci al services, she stated that she may ask for an additional
hearing by the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standi ng Comm ttee.

3:07:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked about the conform ng elenent that
is also a part of the bill.

M5. LUCKY explained that there is a conform ng nanme change for
t he Departnent of Commerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent.

3:08: 27 PM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, expressed the
support of the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent
(EED) for HCR 14.

CHAI R W LSON cl osed testinony.

3:09: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report HCR 14 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

3:09:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that he would Iike nore discussion
on the bill. He asked if anything was done with regard to

putting nore professional staff on the existing House Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Commttee. He related

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- January 29, 2008



his experience as a commttee aide that changed his support for
separating education to a belief in the benefit of having the

two together. He gave an exanple of the value of having the
broad scope of subjects discussed together. He nentioned that
he will sign "no recommendation” on the bill report.

HIR 29- FEDERAL FUNDI NG FOR SPECI AL EDUCATI ON

3:12: 44 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 29, Uging the President of the
United States and the United States Congress to fulfill the
federal obligation to provide adequate funding for special
education in public schools.

3:13:49 PM

JESSE CROSS- CALL, Staff to Senator Johnny Ellis, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, presented HIR 29 on behalf of Senator Ellis, who is
a nenber of the Joint Legislature Education Funding Task Force.
He inforned the commttee that there is a gap in federal funding
for intensive needs students. In 1975, Congress passed the
Individuals wth Disabilities FEducation Act (1 DEA) t hat
aut horized the federal government to fund up to 40 percent of

the average pupil expenditure for special education; however,
the federal government is currently contributing 16 percent of
the cost. The resolution requests that the federal governnent

provi de the naxi mum anount authorized by | DEA M. Cross-Call
concluded that this increase would free funds that |ocal schoo
districts could apply to all students.

3:15: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether the anount the federa
governnent sends to Alaska is |ower because it was a flat rate
and costs have increased, or nerely due to a |ower allocation of
f unds.

MR. CROSS- CALL explained that the amount should be based on the
aver age ampunt spent on students with special needs.

3:16: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated that the federal governnment has
never funded this programat the 40 percent |evel.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -5- January 29, 2008



3:16:17 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether the 40 percent funding level is in
federal statute.

MR, CROSS- CALL replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES rem nded the conmittee that the state does
not always fund prograns at the intended level, either. He said
that he was supportive of this resolution, as were the other
menbers of the JLEFTF.

3:17:19 PM
CHAI R W LSON cl osed testinony.
3:17:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether the state criteria that
defines speci al needs differs from that of the federal
gover nnent .

3:17:55 PM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Department of Education and Early Devel opment (EED), stated that
the resolution deals with IDEA, which is the federal statute
that applies to all special education students, not only to
i ntensive needs students. The definition of intensive needs is
a state conmponent within Alaska's funding fornmula. He pointed
out that the resolution requests the federal governnent to pay
what is authorized under | DEA.

3:18: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER re-stated her question about the state
definition of special needs children.

MR.  JEANS responded that the EED has adopted the federal
definitions in state regulations for the purposes of |DEA He
clarified that intensive needs is a state category.

3:19:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for confirmation that the federal
government has never funded at the 40 percent |evel

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- January 29, 2008



MR. JEANS said that was correct, to best of his know edge.
3:19:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to report HIR 29 out of committee
with individual recommendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal

note. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

HB 324- LOW | NCOVE HOUSI NG HOVELESSNESS

3:20: 09 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 324, "An Act relating to the Al aska housing trust
fund and to the Alaska Council on the Honeless; and providing
for an effective date.” Version A was before the conmttee.

3:21:24 PM

MARK ROM CK, Director, Planning & Program Devel opnent, Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation (AHFC), Department of Revenue,
informed the commttee that HB 234 is the Al aska Housing Trust
legislation that creates a trust fund within the AHFC and
codifies the governor's council on the honel ess. I n addition,
the bill wll allow AHFC to address the needs of Al askan
resi dents who are honel ess.

3:22:49 PM

DAN FAUSKE, Chief Executive Oficer/Executive Director, Al aska
Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC), Departnent of Revenue,
stated that HB 234 represents the efforts of many to establish a
source of funding to address the ongoing issue of honel essness.
He pointed out that $10 million, although not an endownent, will
create sone nuch needed funding. M. Fauske rem nded the
commttee that it 1is nmuch cheaper to house people than
incarcerate them and characterized the work that has been done
as a step forward.

3:24: 06 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recalled a letter dated January 17, 2008
from the AHFC to Chair WIson, that described the trust as a

proven nodel to address honel essness. He asked for nore
information on the nodel.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- January 29, 2008



MR ROM CK explained that there are approxinmately 600 housing
trusts operating in 43 states in the US. These trusts
successfully | everage, on average, approximtely $9 for every $1
of noney that cones into the trust from vari ous sources.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether there are exanples of
unsuccessful housing trusts and the probl ens therein.

MR ROM CK said that, during the steering committee's
devel opnment of the housing trust fund framework, there was
di scussion regarding housing trusts and how to avoid ngjor
pr obl ens. He opined that housing trusts failed due to the |ack
of funding; a housing trust is a conplicated approach to housing
due to the necessary coordination of capital devel opnment,

operating support, and supportive services for t he
beneficiaries. M. Romck noted that the biggest |esson |earned
was that the design of the fund nust coordinate all three
progr amns.

3:27:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether $10 million is enough to
fund the housing trust. She further asked for the specifics of
the "contributions fromother private sources."”

CHAIR WLSON interjected that the funding is proposed by
separate | egislation.

3:28:12 PM

MR. ROM CK answered that $10 mllion is a good starting point
and will allow AHFC time to get the systenms in place to nove
projects forward. Contri butions of nongovernnent funds have

been commtted by the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority
(AVHTA) and the Rasnmuson Foundati on.

3:29: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that the AWHTA is already
expected to contribute $2.5 mllion.

3:29:35 PM

JEFF JESSEE, Chief Executive Oficer, Al aska Mental Health Trust
Aut hori ty, Depar t ment of Revenue, provi ded hi stori cal
information on the devel opnent of the housing trust. Sever al

years ago the Bush Admnistration started an initiative to

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- January 29, 2008



devel op ten year plans to end honel essness across the country,
and many states and communities responded wth plans. The
steering commttee determned that to build sufficient capacity
to address the mpjority of the needs of the honeless in Al aska
woul d cost $15 million to $20 mllion per year for 10 years, not
allowng for the factors of migration and economcs. M. Jessee

described the funding sources in the governor's bill, including
the commtnents from the AVHTA, and the Rasnuson Foundation, to
fund $2 million of the $10 mllion total. Regarding private

phi | ant hropy, he opined that, following the state's commtnent,
the remaining $2.5 mllion could be raised. He cautioned that,
al t hough the ANMHTA could continue to be a funding partner, the
AVMHTA and private philanthropy could not continue to contribute
$5 million per year. M. Jessee enphasized that AHFC conti nues
to generate nore revenue than it spends, and suggested that its
corporate receipts could go into the housing trust at the
direction of the |egislature.

3:34: 08 PM

CHAIR WLSON expressed her understanding that AHFC corporate
receipts are in the general fund and the noney would have to be
appropriated at the expense of existing prograns. She then
directed the committee to turn to page 2, line 16, of the bill
and asked how nuch cost is estimated for the adm nistration of
t he fund.

3:35: 34 PM

MR. ROM CK opined that the admnistrative costs of the fund,
such as staff, training, and consulting, would probably not
exceed five percent.

3:36:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for a further description of the
needs of the 4,000 households that are on a waiting list for
publ i ¢ housi ng prograrns.

MR ROMCK explained that the 4,000 fanmlies include those
waiting for public housing properties and those waiting for
Section 8 housing choice vouchers. Regarding the allocation of
funds fromthe trust fund, aside from the general categories of
capi tal expendi t ur es, operating assistance, and supportive
services, that decision wll be part of the charge of the
governor's council .

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- January 29, 2008



3:38:34 PM

MR. JESSEE informed the conmttee that when he was on the
council for honel essness, he thought he had a handle on the
housing matter, but he was surprised to learn that virtually all
of the noney for |ow inconme housing in the state conmes fromthe
federal governnent. In addition, the mnoney funded for |ow
i ncone housing is set aside for those who earn 70 percent of the
area nedian incone and above; however, the greatest need is of
those who earn 50 percent of the area nedian inconme and bel ow
M. Jessee explained that the low income dollars are going to
those with a relatively higher incone level, although that is

not the greatest need, for two reasons. The first reason is
that low income housing projects have to prove that they are
econoni c. Al low income housing projects are built with many

sources of funding, such as low incone tax credits, HUD credits,
and | ow interest comrercial |oans, and therefore, business plans
must eventually show revenue from tenants. Hi gher rents bring
nore incone, and thus the higher the incone of the renters the
nmore economc the project and there is nore interest from
devel opers. The second reason is that those who are living at
50 percent of the area nedian income and bel ow generally have

probl ers Wi th subst ance abuse, nment al heal th i ssues,
devel opnental disabilities, donestic violence, or illnesses that
keep them from working enough to afford housing. M. Jessee

related that in nost Alaska comunities, an individual must work
nore than 100 hours a week at mninmm wage to afford housing.
He acknow edged that those with the greatest need are not good
tenants and present unique difficulties for housers. The ANHTA
has learned that there nust be a bifurcated system wth the
social service workers, who know how to provide support
services, but not necessarily how to build housing units. The
social service workers can provide case nmanagenent, tenant
education, financial literacy, enploynent training, therapy and
counsel i ng. The housers can provide successful business nodels
for devel opers. He gave the exanple of the $40 million Sound
Famlies Initiative funded by the Gates Foundati on. The Gates
Foundati on di scovered that these projects need three conponents:
capital noney from the foundation to draw down the overall cost
of the project to the devel oper; support services, including a
five to ten year commtnent of funding for those services; and
partnering with housing authorities to project-base the Section
8 housi ng choi ce vouchers.

3:48: 59 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- January 29, 2008



MR. JESSEE explained that the rental subsidy works such that an
i ndi vidual gets a rent voucher and has to search out a landlord
who agrees to rent to them This process is beyond the
abilities of nost of the individuals with the greatest need.
Wth the Housing First nodel, part of the idea is to connect the
voucher with a housing unit, so that the social services staff
can put the client in the housing. After placenent in housing

the client has a nuch greater chance of success. Furt her,
addressing the issue of famlies, M. Jessee stated that, in
sonme Title 1 schools in Alaska, nore than half of the kids in a
cl assroom transfer by the end of the year. He opined that a
school, and its students, can not succeed when kids are noving
to different schools each year. In Seattle, at the end of five

years of influence by the Sound Famlies Initiative, the
per cent age of kids changi ng schools was down from 25 percent to
|l ess than 1 percent, because finding housing anchored kids in a
comunity.

3:52:17 PM

MR. JESSEE stressed that previous unsuccessful prograns were
those that did not have one of the three essential conponents,

and so were too expensive, w thout support services, or wthout

effective rental subsidies. He pointed out that, in addition to
the value of housing to the health of famlies, the recidivism
of those coming out of corrections or nmental health facilities,

when they do not have housi ng and support services, is high.

3:53:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether this programis simlar to
the Seattle Housing First programfor public inebriates.

MR. JESSEE explained that there is nothing in the creation of
the housing trust connected to prograns specifically where
peopl e can drink; however, that is not to say that the housing
trust precludes such an option.

3:54:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH called the commttee's attention to
page 3, line 14, that directs four nenbers of the Al aska Counci
on the Honeless wll have experience or expertise in working
wi th housi ng devel opnent, financing, and consuners of affordable
housi ng. She asked what nenbers of the population wll be
encouraged to participate in the adm nistrative board.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- January 29, 2008



MR. ROM CK explained that that category is designed to bring
experience from those who are involved in honeless services,
such as providers of affordable housing, social service workers,
consuners of affordabl e housing, bankers, or real estate agents.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opined that real estate devel opers and
financial officers should also be included. She suggested that
the two-year service term for council nenbers should be expanded
to a four-year term

MR. ROM CK said that a four-year termcould be consi dered.

MR. JESSEE relayed that the Senate commttee substitute (CS)
will reflect a |longer term

3:56: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for the definition of "econonc
area" as used on page 1, line 12, of the bill.

MR ROMCK explained that an economc area is traditionally
defined through the census area. In an energency, or in the
case of a natural disaster, there are reasons, other than
geographic, to focus attention on a honeless population; thus
the use of the term"economc area” will allow nore flexibility.

3:58:41 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for an exanpl e.

MR. ROMCK gave the exanple of the down turn of the fishing
industry in Bristol Bay and the loss of jobs and honmes as a
resul t.

MR. JESSEE gave another exanple that sonme comunities in
Sout heast may be affected by a loss of the tinber industry,
wher eas nei ghboring fishing conmunities are unaffected.

3:59: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for the definition of "honel essness”
for adults versus chil dren.

MR. ROM CK acknowl edged that there are a couple of different
definitions primarily used by the federal governnent. The
definition that the AHFC will use for this programis broad and
generally includes those who mght not normally be considered

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- January 29, 2008



honel ess, such as those who are living in canps or are doubled
up with other famlies and relatives. The reason for this broad
definition is to address the needs of both those who are
traditionally considered to be honeless and those who are near
homel essness; part of the purpose of the legislation is to
prevent honel essness.

4:01: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recalled that a factor in the definition of
homel essness related to the lack of a permanent nailing address
or the number of tines fam|ies changed residences.

MR ROM CK stated that there is no tie to the nunber of tines a
person or fam |y changes residences.

4:02: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for clarification of page 2, line
7, that allows the corporation to participate in the devel opnent
of buildings or units that, by their use, address the purpose of
the fund but that, by their operation, appear nonresidential in
nat ur e.

MR. ROM CK explained that currently the AHFC has a statutory
definition of what is considered residential housing. Thi s
definition is specific in the sense that it goes to the intent
and nature of the relationship between the tenant and the owner
of the property. This definition prevents the AHFC from
participating in sone projects that are residential, but may be
in a different category; for exanple, the Anchorage Safe Harbor
Inn. M. Romick noted that the intent of line 7 is to allow the
pur pose  of the fund sufficient flexibility to address
honel essness.

4:05:10 PM
CHAI R W LSON asked for the definition of "units."

MR. ROM CK answered that a building is a structure and a unit is
the unit in which soneone Iives. In response to a further
guestion, he said that there are nunmerous structure types that
could be funded by this |egislation. The structures are not
referred to as projects, but rather, affordable housing, in
order to avoid negative connotations. The intent is that this
type of housing will be integrated anywhere into the community.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- January 29, 2008



MR. JESSEE assured the conmttee that affordable housing is
nmoving away from the concept of projects and devel opers are
interested in developing 100 to 150 units, sone of which wll be
sold at fair market value and sone at |ower income |evels.
Contenplating partnering wth social services for support
encourages the inclusion of units for honeless individuals, as
in the Seattle exanple, with the long term goal of successful
nei ghbor hoods.

4:09: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that the definition of honeless
shoul d be cited in | egislation.

4:09:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER recalled M. Jessee's testinony that the
$10 mllion is sufficient to begin this program She then asked
what would happen to the structures built with this noney if
there is no continued financial support in subsequent years.

MR ROM CK explained that, if the project or building can no
| onger function as it was intended, the AHFC would continue to
use it to provide housing in another manner.

4:11: 25 PM

CHAIR W LSON suggested that the report that is required by the
bill should be issued by the first day of January of each year.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opined that offices are in transition
prior to the convening of the session.

4:12: 42 PM

CHAIR W LSON further suggested that the term of office for the
nmenbers of the Alaska Council on the Honel ess should be nore
than two years.

4:13:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA added that nenberships can be political,
and thus suggested that a five-year term would bridge changes in
the admnistration and help to muintain an institutiona
hi story.

4:14: 33 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- January 29, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 3, line 27, and asked for
t he amount of the per diemcited.

MR. ROM CK responded that AS 39.20.180 refers to the per diem of
t he AHFC board and is about $60 a day.

4:15: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER pointed out that the length of service
woul d be difficult for counci | menber s who are al so
conmi ssioners, and for vol unteers.

4:16: 06 PM

CHAIR WLSON reconmmended that nenbers' ternms are staggered in
order to prevent the transition of the entire board at once.

4:16: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES pointed out that a nenber can be re-
appointed after a two-year term He related his personal
experience of serving on boards and commi ssions, and opi ned that
a far greater problem is the nunber of comm ssioners that are
designated to serve

4:18: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether the inpact of a change of
adm nistration on nenbers, who are also conm ssioners, is
addressed on page 3, line 17.

CHAIR WLSON clarified that line 17 addresses an absence for one
meet i ng.

MR. ROM CK indicated that this provision is identical to that of
the AHFC board statute that allows board nmenbers, who are also
conmmi ssioners, to appoint a permanent designee.

4:19: 54 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked whet her the sane designee continued through a
change in adm ni stration.

MR ROM CK said sonetines.

4:20: 32 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 15- January 29, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his belief that, if there is
going to be a designee, the bill should specify.

CHAI R W LSON preferred conm ssioner's designee.

4:21:04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opi ned that comm ssioners conme and go and
t hus have a  Dbetter perspective wth the changes in
adm ni stration. Al aska has a problem with tunnel wvision in

bur eaucraci es and an overall view is inportant.
4.:22:05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rel ated his understanding that the intent
and the wusage is that the nenber wll be a conmssioner or
desi gnee. He made a conceptual request to add "or designee" to
t he | anguage of the bill.

4:23:07 PM

STEPHANI E WHEELER, Executive Director, Ofice of Faith Based &
Community Initiatives, Departnent of Health and Social Services,
informed the commttee that, through the National Project
Honel ess Connect in Anchorage, she interviewed several
chronically honeless individuals. She stated that there are
i ndi viduals who are working, or have sources of inconme, but who
are unable to find safe and affordable housing, nonetheless.
She noted that she chairs the statew de Honmel essness Ends in
Al aska- Advi sory Team and two of its four goals are to increase
affordable housing and to pronote locally delivered famly
support services. Ms. Wheeler shared that the 2003 O fice of
Faith Based & Community Initiatives Task Force surveyed needs
statew de and determned that the concern heard nost often was
the | ack of adequate safe and affordable housing for individuals
and famlies. She stated that the DHSS, the Ofice of Faith
Based & Community Initiatives, and the Honelessness Ends in
Al aska- Advi sory Team strongly support the creation of a housing
trust fund.

4:26:21 PM
CHAIR W LSON cl osed public testinony.

4:26:54 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- January 29, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES, speaking as a landlord, related his
experience with tenants who qualify for the Section 8 Housing
Choi ce Voucher Program He stated that there are restrictions
to the program that cause problens for the |[|andlord. I n
addition, he opined that sonetinmes honelessness is a choice.
Representative Roses said that, through his experience as a
teacher, he is well aware of the inpact to those who are
honel ess, particularly on famlies, and wanted to ensure a clear
definition to prevent the confusion of honeless children wth
chil dren whose famlies are transient.

4:30:01 PM

CHAI R WLSON rel ated her experience with renters.

4:31: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER re-stated that the commttee wants to
include in the bill a definition of honeless, a provision for
comm ssi oner  counci | menbers to appoint a designee, and

staggered terns for the board nenbers.
4:32: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked to include the cost of the
adm nistration of the programthat will be taken from the corpus
of the fund. She expressed her desire to see that cost capped.

4:32:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA stated her strong support of HB 324. She
noted her experience in her community and inquired as to the
capacity of the program Representative Ci ssna opined that the
situation is worsening in Anchorage and there is a need for the
program along with an understandi ng of the underlying causes.

4:34:01 PM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES clarified that his statenments did not
intend to say that Section 8 tenants are |ess responsible or
respectful than other renters.

CHAI R W LSON agr eed.

[ Al t hough not formally stated HB 324 was held over.]

4:35: 09 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- January 29, 2008



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adj ourned at 4:35:19 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- January 29, 2008



